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COUNTl 

( Conspiracy) 

The Grand Jury Charges That: 

Betwe~n: at least a; e~rly as ni or abo1,1t early 2014, the. exacLdate beip:g:.iiriknown,. 
-· .. ...... . . . ·:; ,.,. --.; ·';· :- ··: ·::· .. \:~-:; :·.... ' . ~ 

and, on or ab-out the. date of therefu.m of this Indictniebtr in the Western District ·ofN~w . . . . ·-· . . . .. . . . . ' .. ,.. .· 

York)· ari~;Jl.~~Kr~~!~;: ;~~: -~rte]j_tf~rits,: rnFFERY G~ ey,1~~<J'v\7;e~~~:.,~W,3J.?N 

FE~.s .· alk.{~r.'1~J::;. D:~~~~::P1-1TTERSON .a{~:~.···•··DJ~ttr ;:#(,1f: ·.:r;~sr{>':~~G 
ELD~!~'. 6~Et~Q~j•.. ~~ra Chu~ . .£AR:.• ·~@~S~(,.~9N. 
THOMPSON a/k/a Km.t~e, WALDEMAR PABQ~, ~R'WAL.:P.· RQYAL, JR., 

• . - . . ~I., ' _.-· •· ·: "•• • '•,· ,•,_,.,, •·•;•.,, . ; .' ,:•··': .:,. :·,', : _,, ·. •• . .'.; "~! ·1.,. :;}.~ ;, .., ... 

SHAVON RDYAL aik/asrr;. JAMES SULLIVAN, T.ARltELI; HENDRIX,,THbks 
- . . --.··: ··-·-·:-· .. :.: - ..,. ·----- ............. ,: ... --.......;,;;;.: .. _____ . 

. HA..KEEM, 'fENITtY WILLIAMS;, EDWARD GREEN, and. LAF.£kALD"ffiNEi··did 
::;! 

lmowingiy, willfully and unlawfully combine, conspire and agreetogether and with otpers, 

.lmown and unknown, to commit the following offenses, that is: 

(a) to possess with intent to distribute, and to distribute, 280 grirns ot more of a 

mixture and substance contaiµing. cocaine base,. a Schedtile· n: controlled 'substarice, 1Il 

violation ofTitle 21, Unitecf S'tates Code, Sections 841{a)(I) and.84l(b)(})(A); and '' 
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(b) pn aricl wtiJ:w.11,o·qcLfe~f pf;tl:J.e !eal property comp~islllg ho.using. fa9ilities 
•• :.'. ·.:: '"; _. •• .,.:.:.;.,.,:,.1 ··•::•-· :~·-·\·t•:;,/(:,_~.:-:;< ,..:.t:~;... ·•~~•·:•.;•1'.•:,·,::~::",.,,'/, •.~: ·...... ,. ,: ... . . ' .. ::.: ,_;.•:;/_",_'.:;:;''•'.'j'::·,: •c:·,::, ";·_-.:; •. ·.·.:.:.<.:._<:: ·-:./:._;\}:/·.':/.-~:-,l}·J /:},:,:+·r:·,._:,/:).:(.- ·-(/.:'.:: "' •·.:..-, .. ' . 

Authority; to possess with intent to distribute, and. to distrib11te, 280 grams. or more of .a 

mixture and substance contairiing cooaine base, a Schedule II controlled s1+hst~nce, in 
• I • • • • 

vi61ationofTitle'21, Unitecl States t:od~, Sections 841(~)(1) and 860(a).. 

All fu violation ofTitie 21,. Urtited States Code, Section }l46: 

COUNTZ 

(P'ossession:with Intent to· Distribute· and Distribution of 
Cob1iti;~:DB'iiD,s¢/\1/itbi1i:l,:OQ,O·.Feet ofFn,~lfo•J3Io#~iltig:,:lPltQI);e¥fy)····· 

·. ·.·.· ~~~i~t~J ..JtFuither Ch~1$€;:i1at,:·· 

OnoraboutMay:1;.·20i4~:irt tJie:fWestetri D:i's1:ricti·o'fNew Yoi'.k)oi:r:atidwitl.iin 1,:600:
( . ' ' . ~ ' 

f~ef..of:(tt~:·t~atpr.6wirtJ••·•:i~~Pt{s~ii:t~~:'.(3;,Et~G.S,:.!f.(msµt~r~roJepts,.···~.·housil1~;18'(Jllify,-•;A~e1:px···.· 

.tlj_t{I,~f~a¥1ci~#~;)~#r,it~i~:ajl:iij,~,sfii~.~*t11o_rity;.: a, .p:ti~li~:.119.~img'i?t1tµ~tXff;,.-.~t~;i[dte~~ai~1:t,:•• ·. 

SHARON TH01Y-[PSQ~;·~nc/a. ~tae, did knowif1.glyf :mtentionally and:. unla~fully. . 
: possess; with. intent to distribute,.. and. distribute, cocaine base•, a Schedule II condblled . 

' . .~:.: 

substance; itrviolatio1t 6fT±i:Ie 21,. Dnit~c:l States Code, s·edion• 84I(a);(1). 

All in violation of:TitJie :2l;. Umted States Code, Section. 860(a}. 

---~--·----~~--·--- ·--·--·-~--~---~ 
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COUNT3 

·· (Possession witb.Intl'!ntto.Disttibute and Distril,utionc.of. 
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet ofPublic Housing Property) 

The Grand J11ry FurtherCharges That: 

On or about May 22, 2014, in.the Western District of New York, on and within 

1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 
. . 

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the 

defendant, CHARLES ROSE a/k/a Chuck, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully 

possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine· base, a Schedule II controlled 

substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a).(l). 

All in violation: of Title 21, United-States Co·de,•S'ection 860(a). 

COUNT'4 

(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distribution of CocaineBas'e) 

'Fhe Grand Jury Further Charges That: ·· 

.on· or about May ,27, 2014, ·in the W esterrt District of-New York,. the defed~ant, 

- WALDEMAR PABON, did knowiligly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with int~ht to 

distribute, and distribute; cocaine base, a Schedule TI controlle.d substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 

841(b)(l)(C). 
J't 

·---·-··-·-'--'--··-. ··---------------· ... ·--• -------·-·--·-·-· ----···· ..----·---•···----·---·---· -·- ,.____ _,_ ________~------~~----""-~ 
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(Possession withlutenttolDisti-j.pnteand lJistribu.tion of Cotaine Base) 

The Grand Ju:ry Further Charges That: 

On or about May 30, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the defendant,. 

SHAVON ROYAL a/k/a Sir, did lmoWingly, ·rntentionally and. unlawfully possess with 

intent to distribute;. and di~tribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l) and 

841(b)(l)(C). 

COUNT6. 

(Possessionwith Intent to Distribute and Disnibution ofCocaine Hase) 

- . ... . ... 

On or about May· 30; 2.014,. in th¢ Western District of New.York,. the ·defendant, 

:~.. WAlJ'.:JEMAR PABON: ·diet krlowinliiy, int~iitionally a~dhclawfully possess with intJht to 

distribute, and distribute, cocairrebase, a Sthedule':llcontiolled substan·ce. · 

All :in violation of Title 21, ·United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l);; and 

· .. 841(b)(l)(C). 

----·-----·----·---·---··--· ~---~ ---------------·~--------··-· --- -···· .. ---------- -·--·- ___,_________ ..._ _______,.___________ , __~--
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GOUNT 7. 

(Possession with futentto Distribute and Distribution.of· ..· 
Cocaine Base. Within 1,000 FeetofPublic Housing Property) 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

On1or about June. 3, 2014, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within 1,000 

fe~t of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a hous:ing facility .owned by· 

the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defendant, 

-REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay,· did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with 

intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, m 

violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 84l(a)(l). 

All in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 860(a). 

COUNTS 

(Possession with Intent toDistribute and D:istdbutfon of 
Cocairie·Bas·eWifhln t,00.0'.Feet ofPublic Honsing:Froperty) 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

-.• - On or about June 9',.2014, in the Western District ofNewYork;.on and within 1,000 
·:· 

feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility own'e,'d by 

the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defenciiant, 

DERRICK PATTERSON a/k/a Dinky a/k/a Post, did knowingly, intentionally and 

unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II 

controlled substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 84l(a)(l). 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, S~ction 860(a}~ 

------~·.. •~--··------···-·--------···-~--...._____...._.__.________________ .... ...._. ____.________~__~ 
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(Possession with,fute:Q.t to Distdhute andDistriputic>;t q:f<:'.oc~e 13ase) 

The GrandJuty Further Charges That: 
. . 

On or about June 10, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the defendant,· 
.:, I. 

LARO:N THOMJ?SONj did knowingly, intentioiially and unlawfully possess ·with intent to, 

distribute, and distribute, cocain~ base, a Schedule II controlled sub:sta~ce. 

' . 
All 'in violation· of Tide 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l) and 

84l(b)(l)(C). 

@OUNTlO. 
- . . .·. , .. ; .. 

(Possession with Intent to Dishl'bnte and DisniJfi11t{cinofCocam.e· Bia:s:e) 

I • ; ,• > •~-• ~ • • • ' :•; ;~. • • • ' • , • • 

THEODORE .mrnsni-s: :~lklai Te,dd'y; di& k:nowin~;: ;iliterifiotrallY.:iiicf .u:rifawfully ptj~sess 

with inte1i:t to distribute, and distribute;.:cocaiire bas:e; a Schedule II c:orttrolled substanc~; 
:Ji .~ 

AJ1 in violation of Title 21, United Statesi Code·,. Sections 84:L(a)(l); and 
•t:;:: 

84l(h){l)(C). 

' . 

On or a.bo,~t June 13,. Z014, iµ tl~e_W~steh\JJistiict ofN<::w- York, the.defendant,·. 

--·•-··-·---------...------.w-------·-----··--·-----··------------------------·-·--------·-----·····--··-----"------------

7 



CQUNT 11. 

(Possession with Intent to Distdbute and Distribution of 
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property) 

' . 

The Grand Jury Ft1rther Charges That: 

On or about June 18, 2014, in the Western Distr_ict of New York, on and within 

(000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the 

defendant, LARON THOMPSON, ciid knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess 

with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in 

violation ofTitle 21, United States- Code, Section 841(a)(l). 

All in violation of Title· 21, United States Code, Section 860(a); 

COUNT12 

(Possession with Intent tO' Distribute and Distribution of 
Cocaine Base Within 1,00lfFeetofPublic HousfugPtoperty) ·-

.~ 

The G:iand·JrttyFurther Charges That 

· On or aboutJune 25, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and y\rithin 
,t; 

I, 000 feet of the real property comp;ising the Gates Housing Projects,. a housing f~~ility 

owned by th_e Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority,, the 

defendant, JAMES SUI.LIV AN, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with 

intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in 

violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 

Allin violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a). 

-----·-··----·----·--··----------·--- ·--·-··--·-·-····---·--·---·---··-------··-···--·------··-·····---·---····-·-·-·---·-
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COUNT13 

··(Possessionwith futent-t.o DistributeJ111d Distrib11ti9n of 
Cocaine :Base Witbfu 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property") 

The G:ra:nd Jury Futthe:r Charges That: 

On or about July 1, 2014,. in the Western.District of New York, on and within 1,000 

feet of the· real property com-prising the Gates Housing Proj'ects, a housing facility owned by 

the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defendant, 

·JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess 

with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in 

violation ofTitle 21, United States- Code, Section 84l(a)(l),. 

All in violation. ofTide: 21,. Uirit~&St~tes Code-,· Section 860{a}; 

..•C'OWT14 

(P osses'si0n·with. Tute:ut to-Dist:tibnte and,i)1sprib11tl~n. qf' Cocaine B·ase) 

The Grand Jury Fmther Charges That: 

"On or about July 3, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the deferiuant, 

THEODORE HIN'ES a/k/a Teddy, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully po'.ssess 
:~ 

with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l) and 

841(b)(l)(C). 

---"'--~-----·---·-··-·•·--·-----··-------·------·-·--··'-·-·-·------·--- ----------'---·-····--·· ·-··-·--------·--··---·-·----
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COUNTIS 

(Possession with Intent 
. 
to Distribute and Distribution of ' 

Cocaine Base1W1tliin 1;000Feet:0f Public HousmgPropetty) 

Tb.e Grand Jt1ry Further Charges That: 

Oii cir about July 9, 2014, in the Wes tern District ofNew Yorkr on and "\1/ithin 1,000 

feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility owned by 

the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority,.! a public housing authority, the defendant, 

REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with 

intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in 

violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 

All in violation ofTi.tfo il; United States Code,. Section 860(a). · · 

COUNT16 
I. 

(Possession with lrite:rit to, Dis;tribute and Distribution of 
Cocaine Base Witliin 1,000 Fe~t of Public Housing Property) . :~. 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

O!]- or about July 17, 2?14, in the Western District of New York, on and within {,000 
.. 

feet of the real property comprising the Baker Homes Housing Projects, a housing fatility 

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority;, the . 

defendant, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully 

possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled 
. 

substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860( a). 

-•-- -•-••-••---•-•----••-M-•~-----••- •-•--•.,______ ,•-•-•----• ---•-••• -•- •-• • --•-• ----•••••--•- ••--- •• ....--•-••-------,.-••-•--•---••--••-•------
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COUNTJT? 

· (Possessionwithlnte:nt.to Distd.bute· and Distripntion of 
· Cocaine Base Withfu1;000Feet·otPublicHouskg Prop.erty) 

The Grand Jury F11:rtb:er Charges That: 

On or about July 18, 2014, in the,WestemDistrict ofNew.York, on and within 1,000 

· feet of the real:property comprising the Baker Homes .Housing Projects, a ,housing facility 

: own:ed)by the Lackawanna Mmiicipal Housing Authority, -a public housing authority, the 

defendant, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully 

possess,_,with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled 

substance; in violation ofTitle21, United States Code; Section 84l{a)(1), 

All fuviolation ofTitle 21,.UmtedStates Code, Section860(a). 

·(Pdss·essi~n_with,fut¢rit:td1,JD'.istrib1ite, and bistnb.1rg:tiori of 
-~- c ocafue B·~se Witlcin 1,odo;FJefofP~bli~ Ho~i'1gProperty) 

TheG:randJntjFutth:e:r Charges :Ehat: -

Oi;r or about August 14, 2b14, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within 
·;-

· '1/YOO feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housmg-Projects, a housing f~fility 

owned by tl1e Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority,, the 

defendant, CHARLES ROSE a/k/a Chuck, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully 

p0ssess. with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled · 

substance, in violation ofTitle 21-, United States, Code, Section 841 (a)(l),, 

All in violation of Title Zl, U:riited States Code, Section 860(a). 

-----·--·•-·. ---------------···--··-·-------.. -----·------ ---· ··--------·····- ··-···---··--·------·- ···---~ 
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COUNT19 · 

(Possession with futentto Distrib:iite ~d Distribution of 
. . . . . . . . . 

Cocaine Base Withfo, 1,000 Feet· ofPublic Housing Property) 

The Grand Jury FurlherCharges That: 

On or about August 15, 2014, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within 

1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects-,. a housing facility 

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the 

defendant, REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay, did lmowmgly, mtentionally and unlawfully 

possess with •intent to distribute, and distribute, cocame base, a Schedule II controlled 

substance, in violation ofTitle 21; United States Code, Section 84l(a)(l). · 

All in violation of Title Zl, United States:.Code, Sectfori 860(a). 

COUNTZ0 

(Possession with Intent to. Distrib:ute aml Distribution of 
...Cotain(t B~se Withiii 1,000 Feet of.Public Hotismg.Ptoperty) ~!, 

--- .... -..,.... ·.-_ 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

. On or abnutAugust 18, 2014, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within 
-~;: 

l;OOO fe·et of the real properly comprising. the Baker Homes Housing Projects; a ho~sing . 

facility owned by the: Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public·· hoijsing 

authority, the defendant, EDWARD GREEN, did lmowmgly, intentionally and unlawfully 

possess with rntent to distribute, and distribute, cocame base, a Schedule II controlled 

substance; in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l}. · 

All in violation of Title21,. United. States Coder. Section 860(a}. 

-~-·---·------------ _,. ···--· ·---•-··-- ··-·. ---·-----

12 



-COIJNT.21 
.:·<- ... 

(Possessionwithfutentto_I1is.tribi1te__an,dJ'.2is_tr~~u.ti.oR9.fe-Co.~~j1;i~_B.?,~~t .... 

The Grand J-arry FurtherCharges That: • 

On or about August 19)2014, in the Western Dist;rict of New York, the defendant, 
1 

THEOtiORE HINES a/k/a 1'ec1dy, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess 

with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 

All m violation .of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l) and 

84l(b)(l)(C). 

COUNT 22: 

(Possession with futeilt to Distribute and Distribution ofCocame Base} 

' .. \ ' ' .. · .: ' ' ·.\.·:.)'·c',." ... : .. ·· ' ' 

. On or about August 19, 2014, in We .Westeiµ Dis°:·ict ofNew York, the de.fondant, 
;_. ,·• .. ·· ',. 

EDWARlY GREEN, di& knowingly,. intentionally and. unlawfully p~ssess-vVith inteijt to 

:?: 
distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l}~~and 
. ·'?,'i 

•""{f:84l{b)(l)(C). 

----··-·-··-. ·-- ...1- --··---- ------.•--····-·---·-·-•-···-··-·~-·--·-·-·--·-~--··-·---·------------·---·-·--··•··-----·-····-··------·---·----·····-···-·---
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COUNT23 

.{POSSt!SSion with Intent to. Distribute andDistribution or . 
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property) 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

On or about August 20, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and within 

1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the 

defendant, CRAIG ELDRIDGE, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with 

intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, 111 

violation ofTitle 21; United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 

All in violation of Title 21,. United States Code, Section 860(a). 

COUNT24 

(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distribution ofCocaine Base) 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

On or about August 22, 2014, at approximately 11:30 a.m., in the Western Dist:rtt:t of 

New York, the defendant, THEODORE HINES a/k/a Teddy, did knowingly, 
. ... ~ ,,,,. 

intentionally and uniawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine ba'se, a 

Schedule II controlled substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l) and 

84l(b ){l)(C). 

---- -· ·--- ----- -- -------------··-- -- ----------·-· -· . ···----- ·"------ - .. ·-· ····-. --··-·· . - .... . -· .... ··-·- -- --- -~--. ------------ --------------··-··--·--· --------- ·- ---·-· 
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(Possession with Intent to; Bisp.iJ1Jtte, ~~ L.)fottj.b1~ti()I,l' .ofCocaine B'ase) 

The' Grarict'Jrlzy Fiutlter 'ch~tgeS·;Tliat:,' 

On or about August 22, 2014, at approximately 12:10 p.m.; in the Western District 
.... ·, 

of New York, the defendant,· THrio:bcntE ·. IIINEs a/k/a_: T~ddy, clid kilowingly, 
,' • \ ' ' t L , •~ I • : 

intentionally and unlawfully possess with intentto distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a 

Schedule II controlled substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 

8410, )(1 ).(C). 

C.()UNT2'6. 

(Possession with Intent to-D'i~tri~*te:#n4:Jbisfi~11ti:q.n, ofCoe~:i'me-13:~se) 
'-· ,. : ::.. ;-•.,".,f ;' ;,":, ,··: 

The G;ana.l1lijjf1~ije(C~(lt~~$;rhat:·-.·,., 
..-:.;·:; .. -r.·,:·.···; 

On or about August 25, 2014,. in th~ W~st~rn Di~tr{ci ofNew Yorki the'-deferfilant, 

CRATG ELDRIDGE, did lmowingly, intentionally, and·: unlawfully possess with int~µt to . 
-"~~i 
·c~~! 

distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule Ii controlled substance. 

841(b)(l)(C) . 

.... ·--------··--···----·-·----·· ·--·--··-----·------------·----- ---·-- ------------------·--·-·-- ---·--- ---··----------
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COUN'f27 
···•.,, 

(Possession with Intent to. Distribute and Distribution of 
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet ofPnblie Housing Property) 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

On or about August 25, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and within · 

1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the 

defendant, SHAVON ROYAL a/k/a Sir, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully 

possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled 

substance,. in violation ofTitle21,. United States Cdde, Section 84l(a)(l). 

AU in violation of Title 21, United States Code; Section 860(a) .. 

COUNT28 

(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distnlm.tion ofCocaine Base) 

The Grand Jury Furthe:r Charges That:· 

On or about Auiist 26, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the defen~ant, 
' ' • • ••• I 

TARR.ELLHENDRIX, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with inteht to 

distribute, and.distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 

All in .violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 

841(b)(l)(C). 

····-·'---· ----------'--- -------------·---·---•-»•---------------------- ..... ___ 

16 



COUNT29 

· fPossessiouwith Inte:ti~ toDistribute.~tl Distributionpf: 
Cocaine Base Within 1,:000 Feet of Public Housing Propetty) 

The Grand Jmy Furth.et Charges That: 

On or about Au.gust 27, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and with111 
' . . 

1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 

' owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing. authority, the 

defendant, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did· knowingly, intentionally and 

unlawfully,possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II 

controlled.substance, in violation ofTitle 21,_United States Code, Section 841(a)(1). 

Alim violation of?Title 21, United States Code, Se~tion 860(a). 

COUNT30 

(P'ossession witli Intent to: D:istribufo, and Di~hribtition of Cocaine Base)
-'.·• 
.f: 

' .. \ •:::;: 
a~:•The Grand Jury Further Chm:g~s That: 

.; ! ~:::: ·-

On or about August 29, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the deferi~ant, 

TARRELL HENDRIX, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intii1t to 
;;. 

distribute, and distribute; cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 
_.;::: 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 

841(b)(l)(C). 

------ ·•·-·-··············-------·--•·-· - ·-•-·---·-----·----··--------·---------·-· ·--·-··-···-------·----··--·---
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.·' 

(Possession with Intent to, Distrlbitte a:nd Bi~tri.b:ntion ofCocaine Base) 

The Grand. Jury Further Charge~ That:. 

On or about September 15; 2014,. in the Western District of New York, the 

defendants, JAMES SULLIVAN and CHAiuSM:A· ltOYSTEil, did knowingly, 

intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a 

Schedule II controlled substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United· States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 

841(b)(l)(C). 

COUNT32. 

(Possession with Intent tff Distribute· aµd Disfr:ibutio:rt• ofc oca:me Base).. . :· .: ·. 

. '• . . . 

The Grand Jury Fntt:liei Ch¥g~s-That: 

On or about September 16, 2014,. in the Western District of New Yorl<:i~ the 

defendant, JAl\!IBS SULLIVAN, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possessiwith 
-f~-

'~¥ 
intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlle¢fsubstance;. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(lY:~ and 

84l(b)(l)(C). 

__._,_____ • • ·-·--•-•H--•--• ·----·•----•-•---••--••---•-••------••-•--•-•--.........-•---- ----~- ............_______ ,_,___~---•- -~---~-• 
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';.._-.. ~-' 

COUNT33 

(Possessionwith Intent to Distribute and Distrit,1itjon.of .. 
Cocaine Base-Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property) 

The· Grand Jury Further Chfilges Th.at: 

On or about September 24, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates liqusing Projects, a housing 

facility owned by the Lackawanna Munidpal Ho-µsing Authority, a public housing 

authority,· the defendant, DERRICK PATTERSON a/k/a Dinky a/k/a Post, djd 

knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, 

.'cocai:ne,base, a . .Schedule. II.controlled substance, in violation of Title 21, Vnited States 

.-God(:\ Section 84l(a)(l). 

, : · .. : , .All m•violation of Titl~ 21, Unit¢d States Code, S'.ection 869(a).. . 

_./-· 

COVNT34 

(Possession with Intent.to Distribute and Distdbntion of 
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet.of Public Housing Property) 

The Grand Jmy Fu..u.-fuer Charges That ~ 

On or ,about September 26, 2014, in the Weste~-n District of New York,· ort: and 

within• 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a hovsing 

facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing 

authority, the defendant, WALDEMAR PABON, did knowingly, intentionally and 

1unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute,. cocaine base,.. a Schedule II 

·-··-••' ----------·-·-·--··-·-··· ----~·---·-----·-··--·-- .. -·· ··-·-----·--····-·-···--·- --------·-- -· ··-···-·--···-··· ···-· -· -· ------
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. cohtr~'lled substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l) . 
. ·''··(··· .. '. . . 

All in. vi.olation ofTitle 21, Uili:ted States Code, Section 860(~). · 

COUNT JS 

(Possession with.Intent to Distribute· Cocaine Base 
Within1;000 Feet ofPublic Hchising, Property). 

The Gtan:d Jury Further Charges That: 

On or about October 10, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and within 

1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility. 

owned ·by the Lackawanna Municipal• Housing Authority, a_ public housing' authority, the 
. .. . . . . 

defendant, LA.RON THOMPSON,· did knowingly, intentionally and ·unlawfully possess 

with intent to distribute· cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance,. in violation· of 

Title it,: United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 

All in.violatiott of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a)'. 

COUNT:% 

,Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distribution of 
Cocaine Ease Witbini, O'Q(): Feet ofP'nb1ic Housing: Prdpeity); 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

On or about October 14, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and within 

1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the 

defendant, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did knowingly, intentionally and 

. --,-.-------- ---·-·-··-··---·--·•·•"-•·-'·-··'······-·---•·---··---------------·-·--·•·-·-- -~---------·---····-~--
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:/JJ.nlcL~fµ]J;yi p'oss~i~· wit]:} -int~nt to distribute) and· distribute) cocaine ibi;l.Se?, 'a Sih~d~le )I . 
. _·,,,,.;,::,-!" .:\}:t\'•.~:-.:::;,.::,·:-:,;> ;,:·• <:._)·:~·..'.:,· 

· toi1ti-6ll~cf·.stlbstance;•in'violatfon of.Title 21) United States Code; Sectiort·841(a)(1}. : · 

bllifuvfolatlonofTitle 21, United States Code, Se-ction 860(a). _ 

COUNT37 

(Possession with Intent fo·Distribute and Distributio.n:of 
Cocame· Base Within 1,000 Feet ofPublic Fionsing Pr6perfy} 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

On or about October 24) 2014) in the Western District of New York, on and within 

1\.000 '(6ef):rf t]ie real property comprising the Gates· Housing· Projects, a: housing facility· 
· 
1;·il·s::)····.ij::;;:}/~;,'.\D/:?!:('01_:rt:\ •. _·;;• _;_•·,. : _·' ... ',' '' . _·. ·•·\ ... :: L.X.\:.r<,_;:t_L/; . . . 

owneci.:15§•the· taekawaiuia Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing autµdrity; the . 

> ,1Sf~~,~~iif,i'S~~!f l'ATDJ~SO~, ~It/a D~ a/kfa P:st; didr~;ft~Y, . 
iiit~n:tio11}r1Jjhaiii:ttinlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribut~, eoc.ii:ine.p~_s,e;,. a• . 

..,:. "-:'•··: v: ,,,,::, ,,,:! ,,.·... ' . . . . ; . ' . ,·• ::.:;,.!.' .,. : :;-: , ... ~.... ·. / 

.. ,,·,ii\) :.:.:>:::; :: ; .. ··.. . . . . ··- ' <-\})+:)i/:t.·· '. 
·Sch~41JJ¢:,Jl ee1:p_t:rqU€:d. stipstance, in violation of Title 21, United States:· C6q:e·, :S'e:~tioir .. 

84T(a)(1}. 

AJlm violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 860(a)'. 

COUNT38 

(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distribution of 
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Hou.sing Property) 

The- Grand Jury Further Charges That 

Ort or about October 25, 2014, in the Western District of New Y,urk/on'a.nd.withii1 

, i,0QOG feet ofthe,real. property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 
. > ..·'1; .. 

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing . .ai.rth=:·-~mc+,itv"--'-.~;"·~th=e-. _____ 
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. .. 

. :2lel'eiidaht,· 1REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay, did knowingly; intentionally a,i'rcl unlawfully .. 

.'f 

pOssess yii~h- intent to distribµte, arid distribute, ··cocaine base, a Schedule .n- .controlled 

substance:;in.vfolationofTitle 21, UnitedStates Code, Section 841(a}(l). 

All :irt violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a). 

-COUNT39 

(Possession ofCocaine Base with Intent to Distribute) 

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 

On or about November 26, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the 

defendant,LAFEit.ALD Hll\TES,· did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possesS-with 

intent to distr1bute cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance . 

COUNT40 

(I'osse~sfon of28 Grams or More of Cocaine Base with Intent to Dis1J:ilh1te) .,. 

The Gtand Jury Further Charges That: 

On or about November 28, 2014, in the Western District of New York:,~ the 

defendant, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did knowingly, intentionally and 

unlawfully possess with intent to distribute 28' grams or. more of cocaine base, a Schedule n 

controlled substance. 

· All- in violation of· Title 21, 1:Jnited · States ·Code, Sections . 841(a)(I) and 

_______ ._______.'&4IQi1(l)illl~·~.t:~ ... ·__ ·--···-: ·.. · -·--·-··--· ..-...---···____________ 
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATION · 

The Grand)ury Alleges That 

Upon conviction of Count I of the Indictment and/or upon conviction for. any other 

offense for which they are respectively charged in. Counts 2 through 40 of this Inpictrnent, 

the defendants, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty,. REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay,. 

DERRICK PATTERSON a/k/a Dinky a/k/a Post, CRAIG ELDRIDGE,. CHARLES 

ROSE a/k/a Chuck, LARON THO1\1PSON, SHARON THOMJPSON a/k/a Kintae, 

WALDEMAR PABON, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., SHAVON ROYAL a/k/a Sir, 

JAMES SULLIVAN, THEODOR,E HINES a/k/a Teddy, TAR.RELL HENDRIX, 

THOMAS 1lIAtffiEM,,'fERRY ;WILLIAMS,, EDWARD GREEN, .and LAFERALD 

HINES; severally and j'o~itly; shall forfeit to- the• United States any and all property 

constitttting and derived from any:pr'cJceeds obtained, directly and indirectly, as a result of 
. .· .. '' ; ' .' 

such viola:tiorts' and any and all property used,. and intended to be used, in any manner and 
'·1-·· • ·,. 

i ("!•.:' 

part, to commit and to facilitate the commission of such violations, inclµding;. bu~ not 
. .'~~; 

limited to: 

MONETARY JUDGMENT: 

The sum of TWO-HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($250,000.00) in United States Currency, to be evidenced by a monetary judgment issued by 

this Court in aforesaid amount. Said judgment amount to be held joint and severally will 

accrue at the·prevailirig rate per annum and serve as a judgment and lien against defendant's 

property, wherever situated until fully satisfied. 

·--··-·--·-...-~----·--·~-·--·--------- --·-----·· --· -·-·---··--·-- ------·------·· _____..,____ --------·---------·---- ·•-··-··-•-···--~-' 
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S~ctidn. 853(P.)\ toseek fbrfeiture bf iµy otlier-,property of said defendant up to the value of 

--- -the above forfeitctble proper.ty; 

•All pursuant to1 Semons< 853(a)(1} and· 853:(p) of l'itle 21 of ·the: United States . 

·code.. 

DATED: B'uffaio, New York,. December 5,2014.· 

WILLIAM J. HOCHUL, JR. 
·• · United States :Attorney 

BY: S/EDWARD H. WHITE 
Assistant United States Attorney 
Irnited States Attorney's· Office 
Western D1strict-ofNew York .. 
I38 Delaware·Avenue . . . . : ·• 

Buffalo, New Y.ork 14202 
. ·. 716/843:-5862 

edward.h.white@usdoj.gov 

A TRUE BILL_:. 

·~:
S/FOREPERSON 

--~-----------------·---------
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	All in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, S~ction 860(a}~ 
	------~·.. •~--··------···-·--------···-~--...._____...._.__.________________.... ...._. ____.________~__
	~ 
	Figure
	(Possession with,fute:Q.t to Distdhute andDistriputic>;t q:f<:'.oc~e 13ase) The GrandJuty Further Charges That: 
	. . 
	On or about June 10, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the defendant,· 
	.:, I. 
	LARO:N THOMJ?SONj did knowingly, intentioiially and unlawfully possess ·with intent to, distribute, and distribute, cocain~ base, a Schedule II controlled sub:sta~ce. 
	' . All 'in violation· of Tide 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l) and 
	84l(b)(l)(C). 
	@OUNTlO. 
	-. . .·. ,.. ; .. 
	(Possession with Intentto Dishl'bnte and DisniJfi11t{cinofCocam.e· Bia:s:e) 
	I • ; ,• > •~-• ~ • • • ' :•; ;~. • • • ' • , • • 
	THEODORE .mrnsni-s: :~lklai Te,dd'y; di& k:nowin~;: ;iliterifiotrallY.:iiicf .u:rifawfully ptj~sess 
	with inte1i:t to distribute, and distribute;.:cocaiire bas:e; a Schedule II c:orttrolled substanc~; 
	:Ji 
	.~ AJ1 in violation of Title 21, United Statesi Code·,. Sections 84:L(a)(l); and 
	•t:;:: 
	84l(h){l)(C). 
	' . On or a.bo,~t June 13,. Z014, iµ tl~e_W~steh\JJistiict ofN<::w-York, the.defendant,·. 
	--·•-··-·---------...------.w-------·-----··--·-----··------------------------·-·--------·-----·····--··-----"-----------7 
	-

	Figure
	Figure
	CQUNT 11. 
	(Possession with Intentto Distdbute and Distribution of Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property) 
	' . 
	The Grand Jury Ft1rther Charges That: 
	On or about June 18, 2014, in the Western Distr_ict of New York, on and within (000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defendant, LARON THOMPSON, ciid knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States-Code, Section 841(a)(l). 
	All in violation ofTitle· 21, United States Code, Section 860(a); 
	COUNT12 
	(Possession with Intent tO' Distribute and Distribution of Cocaine Base Within 1,00lfFeetofPublic HousfugPtoperty) ·
	-

	.~ 
	The G:iand·JrttyFurther Charges That 
	· On or aboutJune 25, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and y\rithin 
	,t; 
	I, 000 feet of the real property comp;ising the Gates Housing Projects,. a housing f~~ility owned by th_e Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority,, the defendant, JAMES SUI.LIV AN, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 
	Allin violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 860(a). 
	-----·-··----·----·--··----------·---·--·-··--·-·-····---·--·---·---··-------··-···--·------··-·····---·---····-·-·-·---·
	-

	Figure
	Figure
	COUNT13 
	··(Possessionwith futent-t.o DistributeJ111d Distrib11ti9n of Cocaine :Base Witbfu 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property") The G:ra:nd Jury Futthe:r Charges That: 
	On or about July 1, 2014,. in the Western.District of New York, on and within 1,000 feet ofthe· real property com-prising the Gates Housing Proj'ects, a housing facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defendant, 
	·JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intentto distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States-Code, Section 84l(a)(l),. 
	All in violation. ofTide: 21,. Uirit~&St~tes Code-,· Section 860{a}; 
	..•C'OWT14 (P osses'si0n·with. Tute:utto-Dist:tibnte and,i)1sprib11tl~n. qf' Cocaine B·ase) The Grand Jury Fmther Charges That: "On or about July 3, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the deferiuant, THEODORE HIN'ES a/k/a Teddy, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully po'.ssess 
	:~ 
	with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l) and 841(b)(l)(C). 
	---"'--~-----·---·-··-·•·--·-----··-------·------·-·--··'-·-·-·------·-------------'---·-····--·· ·-··-·--------·--··---·-·---
	-

	Figure
	Figure
	COUNTIS 
	(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distribution of Cocaine Base1W1tliin 1;000Feet:0f Public HousmgPropetty) 
	. 
	' 

	Tb.e Grand Jt1ry Further Charges That: 
	Oii cir about July 9, 2014, in the Wes tern District ofNew Yorkr on and "\1/ithin 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority,.! a public housing authority, the defendant, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 
	All in violation ofTi.tfo il; United States Code,. Section 860(a). · · 
	COUNT16 
	COUNT16 
	I. 
	(Possession with lrite:rit to, Dis;tribute and Distribution of Cocaine Base Witliin 1,000 Fe~t ofPublic Housing Property) 
	. :~. 
	The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	O!]-or about July 17, 2?14, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within {,000 
	.. 
	feet of the real property comprising the Baker Homes Housing Projects, a housing fatility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority;, the . defendant, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled 
	. substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860( a). 
	-•---•-••-••---•-•----••-M-•~-----••-•-•--•.,______ ,•-•-•----• ---•-••• -•-•-• • --•-• ----•••••--•-••---•• ....--•-••-------,.-••-•--•---••--••-•-----
	-

	Figure
	COUNTJT? 
	· (Distd.bute· andDistripntion of · Cocaine Base Withfu1;000Feet·otPublicHouskg Prop.erty) The Grand Jury F11:rtb:er Charges That: 
	Possessionwithlnte:nt.to 

	On or about July 18, 2014, in the,WestemDistrict ofNew.York, on and within 1,000 · feet of the real:property comprising the Baker Homes .Housing Projects, a ,housing facility : own:ed)by the Lackawanna Mmiicipal Housing Authority, -a public housing authority, the 
	defendant, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully 
	possess,_,with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled 
	substance; in violation ofTitle21, United States Code; Section 84l{a)(1), 
	All fuviolation ofTitle 21,.UmtedStates Code, Section860(a). 
	Figure
	·(Pdss·essi~n_with,fut¢rit:td1,JD'.istrib1ite, and bistnb.1rg:tiori of 
	-~
	-

	cocafue B·~se Witlcin 1,odo;FJefofP~bli~ Ho~i'1gProperty) TheG:randJntjFutth:e:r Charges :Ehat: Oi;r or about August 14, 2b14, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within 
	-

	·;
	-

	· '1/YOO feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housmg-Projects, a housing f~fility owned by tl1e Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority,, the defendant, CHARLES ROSE a/k/a Chuck, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully p0ssess. with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled · substance, in violation ofTitle 21-, United States, Code, Section 841 (a)(l),, 
	All in violation of Title Zl, U:riited States Code, Section 860(a). 
	-----·--·•-·. ---------------···--··-·-------.. -----·---------· ··--------·····-··-···---··--·------·-···---~ 
	Figure
	COUNT19 · 
	(Possessionwith futentto Distrib:iite ~d Distribution of 
	. . . . . . . . . 
	Cocaine Base Withfo, 1,000 Feet· ofPublic Housing Property) The Grand Jury FurlherCharges That: 
	On or about August 15, 2014, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects-,. a housing facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defendant, REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay, did lmowmgly, mtentionally and unlawfully possess with •intent to distribute, and distribute, cocame base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in violation ofTitle 21; United States Code, Section 84l(a)(l). · 
	All in violation of Title Zl, United States:.Code, Sectfori 860(a). 
	COUNTZ0 (Possession withIntentto.Distrib:ute amlDistribution of 
	...
	Cotain(t B~se Withiii 1,000 Feet of.Public Hotismg.Ptoperty) 
	~!, 
	.... -..,.... ·.-_ 
	---

	The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	. On or abnutAugust 18, 2014, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within 
	-~;: 
	l;OOO fe·et of the real properly comprising. the Baker Homes Housing Projects; a ho~sing . facility owned by the: Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public·· hoijsing authority, the defendant, EDWARD GREEN, did lmowmgly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with rntent to distribute, and distribute, cocame base, a Schedule II controlled substance; in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l}. · 
	Allin violation ofTitle21,. United. States Coder. Section 860(a}. 
	-~-·---·------------_,. ···--· ·---•-··--··-·. ---·----
	-

	Figure
	-
	COIJNT.21 

	.:·<-... 
	(Possessionwithfutentto_I1is.tribi1te__an,dJ'.2is_tr~~u.ti.oR9.fe-Co.~~j1;i~_B.?,~~t .... The Grand J-arry FurtherCharges That: • On or about August 19)2014, in the Western Dist;rict of New York, the defendant, 
	1 
	THEOtiORE HINES a/k/a 1'ec1dy, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess withintent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 
	All 
	All 
	All 
	m violation .of Title 
	21, United 
	States 
	Code, 
	Sections 
	841(a)(l) 
	and 

	84l(b)(l)(C). 
	84l(b)(l)(C). 

	TR
	COUNT 22: 


	(Possession with futeilt to Distribute and Distribution ofCocame Base} 
	Figure
	' ..\ ' ' .. · .: ' ' ·.\.·:.)'·c',."... : ..·· ' ' 
	. On or about August 19, 2014, in We .Westeiµ Dis°:·ict ofNew York, the de.fondant, 
	;_. ,·• ..·· ',. 
	EDWARlY GREEN, di& knowingly,. intentionally and. unlawfully p~ssess-vVith inteijt to :?: 
	distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule IIcontrolled substance. All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l}~~and 
	. ·'?,'i 
	•""{f:
	84l{b)(l)(C). 
	----··-·-··-. ·--...1---··----------.•--····-·---·-·-•-···-··-·~-·--·-·-·--·-~--··-·---·------------·---·-·--··•··-----·-····-··------·---·----·····-···-·--
	-

	· 13 
	Figure
	COUNT23 
	.{POSSt!SSion with Intent to. Distribute andDistribution or . Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property) The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	On or about August 20, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defendant, CRAIG ELDRIDGE, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, 111 violation ofTitle 21; United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 
	All in violation of Title 21,. United States Code, Section 860(a). 
	COUNT24 
	(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distribution ofCocaine Base) The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	On or about August 22, 2014, at approximately 11:30 a.m., in the Western Dist:rtt:t of New York, the defendant, THEODORE HINES a/k/a Teddy, did knowingly, 
	. 
	,,,,. 
	... 
	~ 

	intentionally and uniawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine ba'se, a Schedule II controlled substance. All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(l) and 84l(b ){l)(C). 
	-----· ·-----------------------··--------------·-·-· . ···-----·"-------.. ·-· ····-. --··-·· . -.... . -· .... ··-·-------~--. --------------------------··-··--·--·---------·----·-· 
	Figure
	Figure
	(Possession with Intent to; Bisp.iJ1Jtte, ~~ L.)fottj.b1~ti()I,l' .ofCocaine B'ase) The' Grarict'Jrlzy Fiutlter 'ch~tgeS·;Tliat:,' On or about August 22, 2014, at approximately 12:10 p.m.; in the Western District 
	.... ·, 
	of New York, the defendant,· THrio:bcntE ·. IIINEs a/k/a_: T~ddy, clid kilowingly, 
	,' • \ ' ' t L , •~ I • : 
	intentionally and unlawfully possess with intentto distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 8410, )(1 ).(C). 
	C.()UNT2'6. (Possession with Intentto-D'i~tri~*te:#n4:Jbisfi~11ti:q.n, ofCoe~:i'me-13:~se) 
	'-· ,. :::.. ;-•.,".,f ;' ;,":, ,··: 


	The G;ana.l1lijjf1~ije(C~(lt~~$;rhat:·-.·,., 
	The G;ana.l1lijjf1~ije(C~(lt~~$;rhat:·-.·,., 
	..-:.;·:; .. -r.·,:·.···; 
	On or about August 25, 2014,. in th~ W~st~rn Di~tr{ci ofNew Yorki the'-deferfilant, CRATG ELDRIDGE, did lmowingly, intentionally, and·: unlawfully possess with int~µt to . 
	-"~~i 
	·c~~! 
	distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule Ii controlled substance. 
	Figure
	Figure
	841(b)(l)(C) . 
	.... ·--------··--···----·-·----·· ·--·--··-----·------------·--------·--------------------·--·-·-----·------··---------
	-

	Figure
	COUN'f27 
	···•.,, 
	(Possession with Intent to. Distribute and Distribution of Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet ofPnblie Housing Property) 
	The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	On or about August 25, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and within · 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defendant, SHAVON ROYAL a/k/a Sir, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance,. in violation ofTitle21,. United States Cdde, Section 84l(a)(l). 
	AU in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code; Section 860(a) .. 
	COUNT28 
	(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distnlm.tion ofCocaine Base) 
	The Grand Jury Furthe:r Charges That:· 
	On or about Auiist 26, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the defen~ant, 
	' ' • • ••• I 
	TARR.ELLHENDRIX, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with inteht to distribute, and.distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. All in .violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 841(b)(l)(C). 
	····-·'---· ----------'----------------·---·---•-»•----------------------..... ___ 
	Figure
	Figure
	COUNT29 
	Figure

	· fPossessiouwith Inte:ti~ toDistribute.~tl Distributionpf: Cocaine Base Within 1,:000 Feet ofPublic Housing Propetty) The Grand Jmy Charges That: 
	Furth.et 

	On or about Au.gust 27, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and with111 
	. . 
	' 

	1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 
	' 
	owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing. authority, the defendant, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did· knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully,possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled.substance, in violation ofTitle 21,_United States Code, Section 841(a)(1). 
	Alimviolation of?Title 21, United States Code, Se~tion 860(a). 
	COUNT30 (P'ossession witliIntent to: D:istribufo, andDi~hribtition ofCocaine Base)
	-'.·• 
	.f: 
	'.. \ 
	•:::;: 
	a~:•
	The Grand Jury Further Chm:g~s That: 
	.
	~:::: ·
	; ! 
	-

	On or about August 29, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the deferi~ant, TARRELL HENDRIX, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intii1t to 
	;;. 
	distribute, and distribute; cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 
	_.;::: 
	All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 841(b)(l)(C). 
	·•·-·-··············-------·--•·-· -·-•-·---·-----·----··--------·---------·-· ·--·-··-···-------·----··--·--
	------
	-

	Figure
	.·' 
	(Possession with Intent to, Distrlbitte a:nd Bi~tri.b:ntion ofCocaine Base) 
	The Grand. Jury Further Charge~ That:. 
	On or about September 15; 2014,. in the Western District of New York, the defendants, JAMES SULLIVAN and CHAiuSM:A· ltOYSTEil, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance. 
	All in violation of Title 21, United· States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 841(b)(l)(C). 
	COUNT32. (Possession with Intent tff Distribute· aµd Disfr:ibutio:rt• ofcoca:me Base).
	. :· .: ·. '• . . . 
	. 
	. 

	The Grand Jury Fntt:liei Ch¥g~s-That: On or about September 16, 2014,. in the Western District of New Yorl<:i~ the defendant, JAl\!IBS SULLIVAN, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possessiwith 
	-f~
	-

	'~¥ 
	intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlle¢fsubstance;. All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(lY:~ and 84l(b)(l)(C). 
	__._,_____ • • ·-·--•-•H--•--• ·----·•----•-•---••--••---•-••------••-•--•-•--.........-•--------~-............_______ ,_,___~---•--~---~-• 
	Figure
	Figure
	';.._-.. ~-' 
	COUNT33 (Possessionwith Intent to Distribute andDistrit,1itjon.of.. Cocaine Base-Within 1,000 Feet ofPublic Housing Property) The· Grand Jury Further Chfilges Th.at: 
	On or about September 24, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and 
	within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates liqusing Projects, a housing 
	facility owned by the Lackawanna Munidpal Ho-µsing Authority, a public housing 
	authority,· the defendant, DERRICK PATTERSON a/k/a Dinky a/k/a Post, djd 
	knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, .'cocai:ne,base, a . .Schedule. II.controlled substance, in violation ofTitle 21, Vnited States .-God(:\ Section 84l(a)(l). , : · .. : , .All m•violation of Titl~ 21, Unit¢d States Code, S'.ection 869(a).. . 
	_./-· 
	COVNT34 (Possession with Intent.to Distribute and Distdbntion of Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet.ofPublic Housing Property) The Grand Jmy Fu..u.-fuer Charges That ~ 
	On or ,about September 26, 2014, in the Weste~-n District of New York,· ort: and 
	within• 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a hovsing 
	facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing 
	authority, the defendant, WALDEMAR PABON, did knowingly, intentionally and 
	1unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute,. cocaine base,.. a Schedule II 
	·-··-••' ----------·-·-·--··-·-··· ----~·---·-----·-··--·--.. -·· ··-·-----·--····-·-···--·---------·---· ··-···-·--···-··· ···-· -· -· -----19 
	-

	Figure
	. cohtr~'lled substance, in violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(l) . 
	. ·''··(··· .. '. . . 
	All in. vi.olation ofTitle 21, Uili:ted States Code, Section 860(~). · 
	COUNT JS (Possession with.Intent to Distribute·Cocaine Base 
	Within1;000 Feet ofPublic Hchising, Property). The Gtan:d Jury Further Charges That: 
	On or about October 10, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility. owned·by the Lackawanna Municipal• Housing Authority, a_ public housing' authority, the 
	. .. . . . . 
	defendant, LA.RON THOMPSON,· did knowingly, intentionally and ·unlawfully possess with intent to distribute· cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance,. in violation· of Title it,: United States Code, Section 841(a)(l). 
	All in.violatiott ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 860(a)'. 
	COUNT:% 
	,Possession with Intentto Distribute and Distribution of Cocaine Ease Witbini,O'Q(): Feet ofP'nb1ic Housing: Prdpeity); The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	On or about October 14, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defendant, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did knowingly, intentionally and 
	. --,-.-----------·-·-··-··---·--·•·•"-•·-'·-··'······-·---•·---··---------------·-·--·•·-·---~---------·---····-~-
	-

	Figure
	Figure
	:/JJ.nlcL~fµ]J;yi p'oss~i~· wit]:} -int~nt to distribute) and· distribute) cocaine 'a Sih~d~le )I . 
	ibi;l.Se?, 

	. _·,,,,.;,::,-!" .:\}:t\'•.~:-.:::;,.::,·:-:,;> ;,:·• <:._)·:~·..'.:,· 
	Figure
	·toi1ti-6ll~cf·.stlbstance;•in'violatfon of.Title 21) United States Code; Sectiort·841(a)(1}. : · bllifuvfolatlonofTitle 21, United States Code, Se-ction 860(a). _ 
	COUNT37 
	(Possession with Intent fo·Distribute and Distributio.n:of Cocame· Base Within 1,000 Feet ofPublic Fionsing Pr6perfy} The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	On or about October 24) 2014) in the Western District of New York, on and within 1\.000 '(6ef):rf t]ie real property comprising the Gates· Housing· Projects, a: housing facility· 
	· 
	;·il·s::)····.ij::;;:}/~;,'.\D/:?!:('01_:rt:\•. _·;;• _;_•·,. :_·' ... ',' '' . _·. ·•·\ ...:: L.X.\:.r<,_;:t_L/; . . . owneci.:15§•the· taekawaiuia Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing autµdrity; the . 
	1

	> ,1Sf~~,~~iif,i'S~~!f l'ATDJ~SO~, ~It/a D~ a/kfa P:st; didr~;ft~Y, . 
	iiit~n:tio11}r1Jjhaiii:ttinlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribut~, eoc.ii:ine.p~_s,e;,. a• . 
	..,:. "-:'•··: v: ,,,,::, ,,,:! ,,.·... ' . . . . ; . ' . ,·• ::.:;,.!.' .,. : :;-: ,... ~.... ·. / 
	.. ,,·,ii\) :.:.:>:::; :: ; .. ··.. . . . . ··-' <-\})+:)i/:t.·· '. 
	·Sch~41JJ¢:,Jl ee1:p_t:rqU€:d. stipstance, in violation of Title 21, United States:· C6q:e·, :S'e:~tioir .. 84T(a)(1}. 
	AJlm violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 860(a)'. 
	COUNT38 
	(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distribution of Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Hou.sing Property) The-Grand Jury Further Charges That 
	Ort or about October 25, 2014, in the Western District of New Y,urk/on'a.nd.withii1 , i,0QOG feet ofthe,real. property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a housing facility 
	·'1; .. 
	. > ..

	owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing . .ai.rth=:·-~mc+,itv"--'-.~;"·~th=e
	-. _____ 
	21 
	. .. . :2lel'eiidaht,· 1REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay, did knowingly; intentionally a,i'rcl unlawfully .. 
	.'f 
	pOssess yii~h-intent to distribµte, arid distribute, ··cocaine base, a Schedule .n-.controlled substance:;in.vfolationofTitle 21, UnitedStates Code, Section 841(a}(l). All :irt violation ofTitle 21, United States Code, Section 860(a). 
	-COUNT39 
	(Possession ofCocaine Base with Intent to Distribute) The Grand Jury Further Charges That: 
	On or about November 26, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the defendant,LAFEit.ALD Hll\TES,· did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possesS-with intent to distr1bute cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance . 
	Figure
	COUNT40 
	COUNT40 
	(I'osse~sfon of28 Grams or More of Cocaine Base with Intent to Dis1J:ilh1te) .,. 
	The Gtand Jury Further Charges That: 
	On or about November 28, 2014, in the Western District of New York:,~ the defendant, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with intent to distribute 28' grams or. more of cocaine base, a Schedule n controlled substance. 
	· All-in violation of· Title 21, 1:Jnited · States ·Code, Sections . 841(a)(I) and 
	Figure
	Figure
	FORFEITURE ALLEGATION · The Grand)ury Alleges That 
	Figure

	Upon conviction of Count I of the Indictment and/or upon conviction for. any other offense for which they are respectively charged in. Counts 2 through 40 of this Inpictrnent, the defendants, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty,. REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay,. DERRICK PATTERSON a/k/a Dinky a/k/a Post, CRAIG ELDRIDGE,. CHARLES ROSE a/k/a Chuck, LARON THO1\1PSON, SHARON THOMJPSON a/k/a Kintae, WALDEMAR PABON, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., SHAVON ROYAL a/k/a Sir, JAMES SULLIVAN, THEODOR,E HINES a/k/a Teddy, TAR.RELL HENDRIX, lIAtffi
	THOMAS
	1

	. .· .. '' ; ' .
	' 
	such viola:tiorts' and any and all property used,. and intended to be used, in any manner and 
	'·1-·· • ·,. 
	i ("!•.:' 
	part, to commit and to facilitate the commission of such violations, inclµding;. bu~ not 
	..'~~; 
	limited to: 
	MONETARY JUDGMENT: 
	The sum of TWO-HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($) in United States Currency, to be evidenced by a monetary judgment issued by this Court in aforesaid amount. Said judgment amount to be held joint and severally will accrue at the·prevailirig rate per annum and serve as a judgment and lien against defendant's property, wherever situated until fully satisfied. 
	250,000.00

	·--··-·--·-...-~----·--·~-·--·-----------·-----·· --· -·-·---··--·--------·------·· _____..,____ --------·---------·----·•-··-··-•-···--~-' 
	23 
	S~ctidn. 853(P.)\ toseek fbrfeiture bf iµy otlier-,property of said defendant up to the value of 
	----
	the above forfeitctble proper.ty; 

	•All pursuant to1 Semons< 853(a)(1} and· 853:(p) of l'itle 21 of·the: United States . 


	·code.. 
	·code.. 
	DATED: B'uffaio, New York,. December 5,2014.· 
	WILLIAM J. HOCHUL, JR. ·• · United States :Attorney 
	BY: S/EDWARDH. WHITE Assistant United States Attorney Irnited States Attorney's· Office Western D1strict-ofNew York .. I38 Delaware·Avenue 
	. . . . : ·• 
	Buffalo, New Y.ork 14202 . ·. 716/843:-5862 
	edward.h.white@usdoj.gov 

	A TRUE BILL_:. 
	·~:
	S/FOREPERSON 
	--~-----------------·--------24 
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	,. 
	,:• . 








